Women and Health

Distributed by

SR Scholarly Resources Inc.
Wilmington, Delaware

Publisher's Note

This guide to the microfilm edition of *Women and Health* has been produced with the cooperation of the National Women's History Project and the National Clearinghouse on Marital and Date Rape. The following guide is a reproduction of the original.

The original collection was produced by the Women's History Library in Berkeley, CA, and distributed by the Women's History Research Center, 2325 Oak Street, Berkeley, CA 94708.

ISBN 0-8420-4117-6

© 1975 Women's History Research Center Inc., Berkeley, CA

Scholarly Resources Inc. 104 Greenhill Avenue Wilmington, DE 19805-1897

Telephone (302) 654-7713 or 1-800-772-8937 (toll-free)

Also available from Scholarly Resources on microfilm:

Collections previously distributed by the Women's History Research Center:

- Herstory
- Herstory Supplementary Set I
- Herstory Supplementary Set II
- Women and Law

Other collections in women's history distributed by Scholarly Resources:

- Records of the Women's International League for Peace and Freedom, United States Section, 1919-1959
- Collected Records of the Woman's Peace Party, 1914-1920
- The Papers of Edwin Doak and Lucia Ames Mead, 1876-1936
- The Papers of Emily Greene Balch, 1875-1961
- The Papers of Hannah Clothier Hull, 1889-1958
- Records of the Assistant Chief of Naval Personnel for Women, 1942-1972: The WAVES File
- The Papers of Elizabeth Cady Stanton and Susan B. Anthony

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION
History of the Collection
Sections of the Microfilmi
The File Classification System
Organization of the Reel Guide - Catalogue is
Image Numbering i
Addenda
Abbreviations and Symbols
INDEX AND ANNOTATION
TABLE OF CONTENTS OF THE MICROFILM Sec. One-
Section One: Physical and Mental Health of Women Sec. One-1
Section Two: Physical and Mental Illnesses of Women Sec. Two-1
Section Three: Biology, Women and the Life Cycle
Section Four: Birth Control/Population Control.Sec. Four-1
Section Five: Sex and Sexuality Sec. Five-1
Section Six: Black and Third World Women- Health Sec. Six-1
Section Seven: Special Issues of Mass PeriodicalsSec. Seven-1
Addenda Addenda-1

INTRODUCTION

History of the Collection

The Women and Health/Mental Health Collection began as a part of the Topical Research Department of the Women's History Library in 1963. Later incorporated as the Women's History Research Center, Inc., the Library began as a response to the need of many women to have access to materials about the history of women. The Library's creators decided to build a collection themselves that represented "herstory", rather than to leave such a project to chance. Therefore, at the beginning, every item that was relevant to a particular subject as it related to women was collected, clipped, copied, and sent to the Library. Here, women had the job of ascertaining the sources and dates of these items, classifying them according to topics, and filing them. As the number of files grew, they needed further ordering, so we began the lettering and numbering system of the library. This

Material for the Library was collected by women all around the country, from press of all kinds, including professional journals and underground alternative newspapers. Non-press sources were also used including academic research papers and theses, speeches delivered at conferences, leaflets, poetry and graphics printed by women themselves. Within any subject heading in the library materials from

most of these sources can be found; no single point of view is represented exclusively.

The variety of our sources created a problem when we prepared to microfilm them, yet we felt that filming was necessary. Why? First, the collection had grown beyond the Center's ability to maintain it. Second, nationwide requests or the use of the library's files for research made it obvious that the collection needed to be made available, and microfilming would make this possible. Third, sufficient funds were not received to make it possible to operate the library. However, a few grants were received to fund micropublishing some of the collection. So, the microfilm project was begun.

Consulting librarians proposed plans for arranging materials: within subject headings, by publication, or by a chronology. Publications were too numerous to make that feasible. Therefore, material in each of the subjects, already established by the library and now selected for filming, was arranged chronologically. The oldest materials were placed first in files, and the most recent were last. The source was noted on each item, and care was taken to avoid abbreviations that might not be clear to a researcher. Subject headings with voluminous contents were sub-divided. These include files on Abortion, Birth Control, Health Centers and Health Care, and the Pill. The sub-categories used for each of these subjects are explained in the alphabetical index.

Sections of the Microfilm

The microfilmed collection is presented in seven sections.

Section One covers the Physical and Mental Health of Women. Section Two considers Physical and Mental Illnesses of Women. Section Four deals with Biology, Women, and the Life Cycle. Section Four is Birth Control and Population Control materials. Section Five includes Sex and Sexuality. Section Six is about Black and Third World Women and Health. Section Seven includes Special Issues of Mass Periodicals relevant to the topics of the microfilm. Within each of these sections the subject headings follow, as much as possible, the Medical Subject Headings (MeSH headings) used as the library subject heading system in medical schools.

Thus within Section One our file subject headings appear under outline topics that are found in MeSH. In some cases our file titles match one of the MeSH headings. All of the Women's History Library file titles are followed by the letter and number of the file, such as "Abortion (I 12)". Other headings used in the outline for the microfilm (see Table of Contents) are MeSH headings. In the alphabetical index some subject headings are used as cross references that are neither MeSH nor our library's headings. The additional headings were suggested by librarians who felt that they would help the average person searching through the index. For example, "Barmaids" is included in the alphabetical index, and one is referred to our file on "Prostitutes, Women as (G 26)".

The seven main sections of the microfilm are self-explanatory, but a word is needed regarding Sections Six and Seven. Section Six, on Black and Third World Women, includes materials on minority women which was separated out of the files and made available on its own reel because of interest of persons involved in Black and Third World

Studies Programs. Section Six is organized according to the same format as Sections One through Five and subject headings within these Sections. All subject headings within Section Six are designated by the abbreviation BTWW:H (Black and Third World Women: Health). So, for example, if you look in the Table of Contents you will see "Hospital Workers (BTWW:H-A3)" in the outline. The "A3", which follows the BTWW:H abbreviation, indicates the position of the subject within the outline. "Hospital Workers" is the third item in part A of Section Six. The notation (BTWW:H-A3) distinguishes this file from "Hospital Workers, Women as (G 170)", file number G 170 in the original library collection from which the Section Six materials were selected.

Some subject headings appear in Section Six that do not match the original Women's History subject headings. Some new classifications were needed for special concerns of minorities, such as "Poisoning: Lead and Pollution".

Section Seven, the periodicals appendix to the microfilm, is organized in the same order as that of Sections One through Six, and the subject headings within them. There are not special issues of periodicals for every subject in Sections One through Six, of course. However, many topics of this microfilm were treated by numerous special issues of mass periodicals. Birth Control, for example, was included in Section Four of the microfilm. Special issues relating to birth control appear in part IV of Section Seven. All periodicals having articles on this subject are listed in alphabetical order beneath the heading.

The File Classification System

The following is an explanation of the Women's History Research Center, Inc.'s file classification numbers: The File Classification Number is found in parentheses directly after the File Title in both the Tables of Contents and the alphabetical indes. It does not refer to the file's position in the microfilm. Rather, it is part of the system invented by the librarians at the Women's History Research Center, Inc. for their collection of Topical Files. (These files are now accessible at the Archive of Contemporary History, University of Wyoming, Laramie, Wyoming.)

The <u>letter</u> component of the <u>File Classification Number</u> is the most telling. It reveals the broad category of information which will be found in the file. For examples, all "H" files contain material about individual women; all "J" files are about Women's Liberation Groups. The <u>number</u> following the letter is an arbitrary one, assigned chronologically as each new file was started. There are approximately 2,000 files in the system.

The following are brief explanations of <u>file classifications</u> relevant to this microfilm:

A: WOMEN IN COUNTRIES contains information on women in various countries outside the U.S., and in ethnic groups in the United States. Material is gathered from around the world and is both contemporary and historical in nature. The category has general information on the changing roles and social conditions of women throughout the world, authored by both men and women. If an individual woman, now deceased, is known by name, she will probably have a file in "B" (Women in History). Also, information about a particular historical movement involving

women from a country other than the U.S. will be found in "B". If the women in a particular country have an active women's liberation movement, material will be found in "J" (Women's Liberation Groups).

Material is in the form of fyers, pamphlets, graphics, magazine and newspaper clippings, and original research papers.

B: WOMEN IN HISTORY contains information on individual women (deceased) and women in historical movements. (Women still living are listed in "H" (Specific Women).) Given the dearth of available information on women and on women's roles in history, this category was created in order to record new material and gather existing material on individual women in history. Mass media and original papers by or about these women is included as well as reviews and research papers.

C: MEN AND WOMEN®S LIBERATION contains information about men as they have related and reacted to women and women's movements. The material is contemporary as well as historical. Articles are from mass media, and research papers.

D: NON-WOMEN'S LIBERATION GROUPS contains information in three basic sub-categories: (1) groups and organizations with mixed male and female membership in which there is either a separate women's caucus or some emphasis on women's consciousness, (2) groups with all female membership whose focus is not women's liberation, (3) organizations whose membership is mixed, but in which women dominate without any separate consciousness. These are distinct from all women's groups whose focus is women's liberation; that material is found in "J". This file includes articles from mass media, leaflets, position papers, and letters.

E: PROJECTS AND SERVICES includes projects created and run by women since the inception of the women's movement, and services provided by male institutions which meet specific needs of women. Information is current and deals mainly with services available in the U.S. Articles from mass media are contained here as well as records of personal experiences.

F: PROTEST AND EVENTS contains information from rallies, demonstrations, conferences, etc. which dealt with issues of primary importance to women. Material is principally from the U.S. and serves as a chronicle of women's actions in the contemporary women's liberation movement. Articles from mass and alternative press are found here, along with flyers, leaflets, and papers.

G: WOMEN IN ROLES contains material on women in their classical roles, vocations and stereotypes. Information is contemporary and historical and is intended to chronicle the oppression of women in economic and psychological terms. Articles were clipped from mass and alternative press.

H: SPECIFIC WOMEN contains information on women in current history, each of whom have some achievement or characteristic which is of importance to all women, either through her writings, lifestyle, art, politics, or some specific action. The material is about, as well as authored by, the individual woman. Articles from mass and alternative media, reviews, interviews, personal letters, and papers are all here.

I: SUBJECTS includes information on specific topics of interest which primarily describe the nature of women's oppression by institutions and laws. It includes articles from mass and alternative press, and original research.

J: WOMEN'S LIBERATION GROUPS presents material from women's liberation groups throughout the United States and various other countries.

Correspondence from individuals is included, along with manifestos, pamphlets, posters, and announcement of group acitivities. This collection began as active women's liberation groups began to form world-wide and is indicative of the scope of the current women's liberation movement.

K: WOMEN'S FICTION AND WORKS contains material written by women about women solely. Original poetry, songs, art, short fiction, research articles, and position papers by Third World and white women are among the materials here.

L: MASS PERIODICALS includes articles on women and the women's movement from the mass media as well as underground publications.

M: SPECIAL ISSUES OF MASS PERIODICALS and of underground press are presented here. They are focused on women and/or the women's movement, and most are written by women.

Q: WOMEN'S LIBERATION MOVEMENT includes information dealing with issues and arguments related to the women's liberation movement as a whole. New perspectives created by the movement and related new issues which have emerged for women, such as titles and name changing, are considered here.

As an example of how information would be filed, consider the topic of abortion. Material will be found in "A" under Bangladesh Womenm in "B" under Margaret Sanger, in "C" under Dr. Hippocrates, in "E" under Planned Parenthood, in "F" under Pat McInnes, in "I" under Abortion, etc.

Organization of the Reel Guide - Catalogue

The reel guide - catalogue is organized as follows:

The first part of this catalogue is the introduction to the microfilm of which this paragraph is a part. The second part is the alphabetical index, or catalogue to the film. It includes our file headings, MeSH headings, and other subjects with reference to our related files. Every subject heading that is given on the film is listed in the catalogue, along with an annotation describing the contents of the file and cross references to other pertinent files on the microfilm. The reel and image number for each heading is shown in this section in the column to the right of the heading.

The Table of Contents of the microfilm comprises the other part of the catalogue. Titles and subject headings are shown in the order they appear on the film. Next to these headings and titles are the reel and image numbers where the Contents first appear on the microfilm.

Image Numbering

At the top of every image on the microfilm which contains material, there appears a small number. Each reel contains from nine hundred to twelve hundred images. Each reel begins with image number one and numbers continue consecutively to the end of the reel, with the exceptions of the cases listed below. Image numbers were included in our microfilm to make materials more easily accessible. If one is searching for a particular topic, one first finds it in this Reel Guide, either in the Table of Contents or the Alphabetical Index. Beside the subject the reel and image numbers are shown indicating where the materials can be found. By picking out that reel to view and running it quickly on the viewer to the indicated image number the user has easy access to the desired part of the film.

In some cases it was impossible for us to microfilm our files in the order shown in the Table of Contents. In such cases, the microfilm was spliced so that the material appears in the order shown in the Table of Contents. As a result, some image number appear out of sequence. When doing such splicing, a sign was included on the microfilm warning the user that the numbers to follow are out of sequence. We have listed below the actual order in which image numbers appear in the cases where this has been necessary. In a few other cases, from one to ten image numbers may be missing in the midst of a subject heading. In all of these cases, there is no material missing from the microfilm. Rather the rearrangement of the materials has in these instances caused the absence of some numbers.

The image numbers which are out of sequence are listed below in the order that they appear on the microfilm.

Reel	2:	Image	numbers	run	001 to 1065
		_			1065 to 1142
					1186 to 1251
					1143 to 1184
					1253 to end
Reel	3:	Image	numbers	run	001 to 105
					140 to 1 61
					106 to 139
					163 to end
Reel	10:	Image	numbers	run	1270 to 1272
		3			1295 to 1358

Reel 12: Image numbers run 001 to 661 769 to 810 662 to 768 818 to end

Since microfilms are difficult to plan exactly, some reels ended in inconvenient places along the outline for the entire microfilm. In such situations it might have made it necessary for a purchaser to buy several partial reels in order to have all of the contents of one Section. So, we rearranged the whole microfilm, keeping Sections separate as much as possible,

1280 to 1294

while also keeping reels full, that is not half reels or less. The result is that a few reels do not begin with image number one. Other reels have a section "A" appended to the end in which images begin again with number one. The list of such instances is below.

Reel 4 images run: 001 to 1326

section 4A is appended with images 001 to 285

Reel 5 images run: 286 to 1085

section 5A is appended with images 006 to 197

Reel 6 images run: 198 to the end

Reel 8 images run: 001 to 1331

section 8A is appended with images 007 to 411

Reel 9 images run: 412 to the end

Reel 12 images run: 001 to 1092

section 12A is appended with images 001 to 144

Addenda

Some materials related to certain files of the collection arrived so close to the time of filming that it could not be filed into its proper date order, although this happened quite rarely. In most cases, after the "No Source No Date" section there appears an "Addenda" section where these late materials are found. In an effort to update the microfilm during the time it was being filmed, additional materials relating to the microfilm were gathered. This material was filmed in an "Addenda to the Microfilm". A plus sign (+) has been placed next to all subjects for which such materials were filmed, where the subject is listed in this reel guide. The last page of the Table of Contents tells the reel and image numbers where the addenda materials for each Section of the microfilm can be found.

The time period covered by this microfilm is roughly 1965-1974. The Addenda to the Microfilm contains primarily 1974 materials, although there are some earlier and more recent materials also. The microfilming project spanned Spring '74 - Spring '75.

Abbreviations and Symbols

In nearly every instance on this microfilm there are complete source and date citations for the material presented. Materials for which we could not find source and date were included only if they were important. They are collected in the microfilm at the end of each subject with a sign indicating that they are "No Source or No Date" materials. In some cases abbreviations have been used to indicate sources, although most sources were written out in full. The following is a list of the abbreviations commonly used by the staff when listing a source.

Barb: The Berkeley Barb

EDG: Berkeley Daily Gazette

Bird: The Great Speckled Bird (Atlanta, Georgia)

Bridge: The Wilamette Bridge (Oregon)

HWRM: Harrisburg Women's Rights Movement

I.A.M.B.: It Ain't Me Babe

L.A. Times: Los Angeles Times

NL: Abbreviation for Newsletter

NOWletter: a National Organization for Women Newsletter

N. Y. Times: New York Times

Oak. Trib.: Oakland Tribune

OOB: Off Our Backs

Patriot: Kalamazoo or Southern Patriot

S.F. Exam-Chron: San Francisco Sunday Examiner-Chronicle

Symbols are sometimes used in this Reel Guide and some are also used in the microfilm itself.

(1 12) A single letter followed by numbers, enclosed in parentheses, is the number of the file containing the materials in the Women's History Library. See the description of The File Classification System" on pages v through viii of this Introduction.

- (BTWW:H-A1) BTWW:H is an abbreviation for Black and Third World Women and Health, the subject of Section Six of this microfilm. The letter and number that follow the abbreviation refer to the position of the subject heading in Section Six. See the description of "Sections of the Microfilm" on pages ii through iv of this Introduction.
 - This plus sign indicates that additional information about this subject heading may be found in the Addenda to the Microfilm. See the description of Addenda on page xi of this Introduction.
- (Section Seven, IV, E, 1, "Abortion") Section Seven of this microfilm includes special issues of mass periodicals relating to the subjects of this microfilm. The letters and numbers refer to the position of the subject heading in Section Seven. The Roman numeral and capital letter correspond with the section and subsection of the main part of the microfilm (Sections One through Six) where this same subject can also be found. See the description of "Sections of the Microfilm" on pages in through iv of this Introduction.
- Image numbers appear out of sequence on the microfilm.

 See page x of the Introduction for explanation and the actual order in which the image numbers appear.

Reel # Image #

Abortion (I 12)**.....

001

The legal, financial, medical and psychological aspects of abortion are presented. The file is divided thto the following sections: Other Countries; Reports, Surveys, Medical Articles; Personal Experiences; Laws; Politics.

See also: Abortion and Birth Control (BTWW:H-B1)**; Abortion Centers and Clinics (E 1701); Abortion Protest (F 350); Birth Control Handbook (K 914); Maginnis, Patricia (H 1506); Section Seven, IV, E, 1, "Abortion".***

Cross references are: Birth Control (I 57); National Abortion Conference, July, 1971 (F 1583); Women's National Abortion Action Coatition (W.O. N.A.A.C.) (J 342).

This is part of the Black and Third World Protest. It considers the point of view that abortion and birth control are wrong because they represent a threat to the race or ethnic group. Rebuttals contend that this attitude keeps Black women pregnant and poor.

See also: Sterilization, Forced (BTWW:H-B3); Genocide (BTWW:H-C1).

^{*}A single letter followed by numbers, enclosed in parentheses, is the number of the original file in the Women's History Library. See the introduction for further information.

^{**}BTWW:H is an abbreviation for Black and Third World Women and Health, which is Section Six of this microfilm. The letter and number that follow this abbreviation refer to the position of the subject heading in Section Six. See the introduction and Table of Contents for further clarification.

^{***}Section Seven of this microfilm includes special issues of mass periodicals relating to the subjects of this microfilm. The letters and numbers refer to the position of the subject heading in Section Seven. The Roman numeral and capital letter correspond with the section and subsection of the main part of the microfilm (Sections One through Six) where this same subject also can be found. See the introduction and Table of Contents for further information.

⁺ Additional materials on this subject are in the Addenda.

001 Abortion Centers and Clinics (E 1701)..... This file covers clinics and referral agencies, especially those run by women. See also: Abortion Protest (F 350). Cross references are: Abortion (I 12), Birth Control (I 57), Health Centers and Health Care(E 83), Women's National Abortion Action Coalition (W.O.N.A.A.C.) (J 342). Abortion Conference, National, July, 1971. See National Abortion Conference, July, 1971 (F 1583). 194 Abortion Protest (F 350)..... Individual and group protests for legalized abortion, or for abortion law repeal, are included here, as well as the moral and religious aspects of abortion. See also: Abortion (I 12); Abortion Centers and Clinics (E 1701); Lysistrata Day (F 1143); Maginnis, Patricia (H 1506); National Abortion Conference, July, 1971 (F 1583); Women's National Abortion Action Coalition (W.O.N.A.A.C.) (J 342); Section Seven, IV, E, Z, "Abortion Protest". Cross references are: Birth Control (I 57), Health Protest (F 328). Addiction, Drug See Drugs, Women and (I 167). Aged Women See Old, Women as (G 1257). Aggression See Violence, Male (C 1058). Aging See Older Women (G 828) 733 Alcohol, Women and (I 187)..... Women are seen as alcoholics and as prohibitionists, and everything in-between. See also: Drugs-Alcohol (BTWW:H-D4); Nation, Carrie (B 1026); Synanon, Women in (D 1879); Women's Christian Temperance Union (B 1029); Section Seven, II, A, 1, "Alcohol". Alcoholism See Alcohol, Women and (I 187).

Allied Health Personnel

See Hospital Workers, Women as (G 170).

Alone, Women as

See Lonely, Women as (G 1546).

See also: Health Centers and Health Care (BTWW:H-A4).

American Medical Association Protest, 1970 (F 1118).. 1 686

This was a protest by women for control of their own bodies. Specific issues centered on liberalization of A.M.A. policies concerning government health care plans, contraception pills, and abortion reform.

See also: Self-Help Clinics (E 1773). Cross reference is: Health Protest (F 328).

See also: Association for Women Psychologists (D 1105); Mental Patients, Women as (G 455); Psychiatric Protest (F 1152); Henley, Nancy, "Shaking the Lead Out: Action Proposals to Psychologists" (K 1705).

Any Woman Can

See Reuben, David, M.D. (C 1069).

Artificial Insemination
See Test Tube Baby (I 1358).

Association for Women Psychologists (D 1105)....... 2 1186 #
This is a group of feminist therapists and counselors. Their resolutions and motions regarding the status of women are included.

See also: American Psychiatric Association, Women's Caucus (D 1117), Psychiatric Protest (F 1152).

Cross reference is: Psychology, Women and (I 213).

Baker, Norma Jean See Monroe, Marilyn (B 1813).

Barmaids
See Prostitutes, Women as (G 26).

tures with regard to the status of women at different times of their lives, and the preponderance of "stressful" menopause. Ms. Bart discovers that Jewish women are more often depressed than other women. This article was originally printed by the University of Illinois at the Medical Center, Chicago, Illinois, 1970.

Cross references are: Biology, Women in/and (I 186); Marital Happiness and the Family (I 175); Menopause (I 1341); Motherhood and Women's Liberation (G 375); Older Women (G 828).

Bart, Pauline, "The Myth of the Value-Free Psychotherapy" (K 811)..... 730 See also: Bart. Pauline (H 231). Beauty, Woman as See Feminine Beauty, Woman as (G 451). Berman, Edgar, M.D. See Patsy Mink Protest, Dr. Edgar Berman, and the Democratic Party (F 356). Biologists, Women as See Biology, Women in/and (I 186). Biology, Women in/and (I 186)..... 286 5 Women are seen as participants in the field of biology. Biological facts and theories concerning women are also included. See also: all other files in Section Three: The Birth Control Handbook (K 914); Section Seven, III, A, 1, "Biology, Women in/and". Birth See Childbirth and Natural Childbirth (I 512). Midwifery (G 1700). Birth Control (I 57)..... 198 The legal, emotional, moral and medical aspects of birth control are covered, including new discoveries and possibilities for birth control. The material is divided into subsections on Specific Methods, Studies, Failures, Innovations, Politics, Catholic Church, Clinics, and Birth Control in Other Countries. See also: all other files in Section Four: Abortion and Birth Control (BTWW:H-B1); Sterilization, Forced (BTWW:H-B3); Section Seven, IV, A, B, and C, "Birth Control", "The Pill", and "Intrauterine Device (I.U.D.)". Birth Control Handbook, The. Montreal, Quebec, Canada: The Students' Society, McGill University, 1971. 366 Cost: 35¢, or free if you have no money. (K 914). 8A This booklet was carefully prepared by the students at McGill University. It covers topics such as anatomy, hormonal balance, birth control methods, and abortion. The booklet is very frank, and has some illustrations. Cross references are: Abortion (I 12); Biology, Women in/and (I 186); Birth Control (I 57);

Contraceptives, Male (C 1054); Intrauterine Device (I 1859); The Pill (I 208); Venereal Disease

(I 445).

Birth Control Pill See The Pill (I 208). Bisexuality See Female-Female Sexuality (I 5). See also: Gay Women's Liberation (J 117), Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q 463). Bodies and Bodily Parts, Women as (G 1838) # 4 214 Women are considered as particular body parts without regard for the whole person. See also: Boobies, Women as (G 450); Genitalia, Women as (G 509). "Black Women's Role in the Revolution" See The Mumininas of the Committee for Unified Newark, "Black Women's Role in the Revolution" (BTWW:H-G2). 229 Boobies, Women as (G 450)..... Emphasis is on the breasts as the most important part of the female person. Topless dancers are also included. See also: Braless, Women as (G 1183). Boredom See Stir Crazy, Women as (G 1604). Braless, Women as (G 1183).....4 296 This is the trend to look natural and discard artificial support and padding. Braburning protests are included, as well as public reaction. See also: Boobies, Women as (G 450). Cross references are: Bodies and Bodily Parts, Women as (G 1858). Bras See Braless, Women as (G 1183). Brassieres See Braless, Women as (G 1183). 905 Breast Feeding (I 1325)..... Nutritional and psychological values of breast feeding for mothers and their children are discussed. Cross reference is: Biology, Women in/and (I 186). Breasts See Boobies, Women as (G 450).

Brutality See Violence, Male (C 1058).		
Cancer, Women and (I 192)	4	800
Celibacy (I 1329) Female and male celibacy are covered here, as well as the church and marriage. Cross reference is: Sex and Sexology (I 13).		
"Change of Life" See Menopause (I 1341).		
Chastity (I 1330)	9	1094
Chesler, Phyllis (H 1500)	3	140 #
Cross references are: Professionals: Recommended Gynecologists, Lawyers, Psychologists. (E 829); Psychology, Women and (I 213).		
Childbirth and Natural Childbirth (I 512) Medical and psychological aspects of childbirth are covered, including childbirth methods used in other countries. The techniques of natural childbirth are included along with the benefits and disadvantages of natural childbirth.	5	649
See also: Midwifery (G 1700), Section Seven, III, B, "Pregnancy, Childbirth and Childcare". Cross references are: Biology, Women in/and (I 186); Pregnancy (I 212).		
Childless, Women as (G 161)	4	343

See also: Krause, Charlotte, "Women in Therapy and Social Workers as Therapists" (K 1719); Motherhood and Women's Liberation (G 375). Cross reference is: Marital Happiness and the Family (I 175). Children, Women Without See Childless, Women as (G 161). Climax, Sexual See Orgasm (I 207). Cleveland Radical Women's Group, "Sweet Sixteen to 262 LLA Saggy Thirty-Six" (K 986)..... Condoms See Contraceptives, Male (C 1054). 993 Contraceptives, Male (C 1054) Vasectomies and condoms , as well as ideas and research on new possibilities for male contraceptives are considered. See also: The Birth Control Handbook (K 914), Planned Parenthood (E 457), Cross references are: Birth Control (I 57). Sterilization (I 222). Cosmetic Surgery See Plastic Surgery, Women and (I 1261). 1039 10 Conference on Prostitution, December, 1971 (F 1739) ... Cross references are: Prostitutes, Women as (G 26): Sex and Sexology (I 13). 870 Counseling Centers, Women's (E 1683)..... See also: Mental Patients, Women as (G 455); Synanon, Women and (D 1879); Krause, Charlotte, "Women in Therapy and Social Workers as Therapists" (K 1719); Torrey, Jane, "Psychoanalysis: A Feminist Revision" (K 345). Crime See Victims, Women as (G 181).

Daughters of Bilitis See Gay Women's Liberation (J 117), Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q 463), and Female-Female Sexuality (I 5).		
Death, Women and (I 1333)*	5A	070
Delivery See Childbirth and Natural Childbirth (I 512) Midwifery (G 1700).	P	
Deodorants, Douches, and Sprays (I 1485) The attitudes of manufacturers, advertising, beauty magazines, etc., are shown, as well as the harmful physical and psychological effects of these products on women.	L _F	354
Diaphragms See Birth Control (I 57).		
Diet See Nutrition (I 1513).		
Dieting, Women and (G 163).* Because thinness is in fashion, women are pressured to diet; stigmas are attached to being overweight. This file also includes menus and women's discussions of their attempts to lose weight. See also: Section Seven, I. A "Dieting". Cross references are: Feminine Beauty (G 451), Nutrition (I 1513).	2	456
Dirty, Women as (G 305)	4	413
Disabled, Women as (G 521).* See also: Mental Patients, Women as (G 455); Sterilization (I 222); Suicides, Women as (G 176); Victims, Women as (G 181).	4	200

Diseased, Women as See Lepers, Women as (G 1238)	
Doctor Hippocrates (C 1047)	1 1 82
Dominance Gestures (C 194) This file shows the many physical ways in which men express their "superiority" to women. Many pictures are included. See also: Machismo (C 1052). Cross reference is: Violence, Male (C 1058).	1277
"Double IndemnityThe Negro Lesbian in the Straight White World" See Hunter, Eleanor, "Double IndemnityThe Negro Lesbian in the Straight White World" (BTWW: H-G1).	
Douches See Deodorants, Douches, and Sprays (I 1485).	
Dougherty, Norma Jean See Monroe, Marilyn (B 1813).	
Drag Queen Show See Transvestites (I 226).	
Dreams See Sleep, Dreams, and Insomnia (I 1548).	
Drug Abuse See Drugs, Women and (I 167).	
Drug Addiction See Drugs, Women and (I 167).	
Drugs, Women and (I 167)	794
Drugs-Alcohol (BTWW:H-D4)*	312

Drunkenness See Alcohol, Women and (I 187). Dumb Blondes, Women as See Monroe, Marilyn (B 1813). Dying See Death, Women and (I 1333). Education, Sex See Sex Education (I 218). Egocentrism, Male See Machismo (C 1052). Elderly Women See Old, Women as (G 1257). Emotional, Women as (G 1198)..... 521 An attitude prevails that women are emotionally unstable, directed by their emotions rather than by their intellect. See also: Freud, Sigmund (C 388); Hormones, Women and (G 453); Lonely, Women as (G 1546); Nymphomaniacs, Women as (G 1297); Suicides, Women as (G 176). Erikson, Erik (C 1041).... 197 This psychiatrist mythologizes women. He is the author of works dealing with the inner space theory. This file includes reviews of Letter to Gandhi, in which Erikson says that Gandhi hates women. Cross reference is: Psychology, Women and (I 213). Erogenous Zone, Women as (G 1202)...... 653 The amount of skin revealed by women's fashions is shown here. Estrogens See Hormones, Women and (G 453). Everything You Always Wanted to Know About Sex But Were Afraid to Ask See Reuben, David, M.D. (C 1069). Extra-Marital Affairs

See Sex and Sexology (I 13).

Family, Women and

See Marital Happiness and the Family (I 175).

Family Planning

See Birth Control (I 57), Family Planning/Population Growth Control (BTWW:H-A2), Planned Parenthood (E 457), Population Control (I 211).

Family Planning/ Population Growth Control (BTWW:H-A2) 11 025

This file includes family planning and population control as it relates to black and Third World peoples. Opinions of leaders and family planning advocates are included, as well as information about the effects on women.

See also: Abortion and Birth Control (BTWW:H-B2); Genocide (BTWW:H-C1); Sterilization, Forced (BTWW:H-B3).

Fashion, Women and

See Erogenous Zone, Women as (G 1202).

Feelings

See Emotional, Women as (G 1198).

Lesbians and Women's Liberation (0 177); Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q 463); Martin, Del, and Lyon, Phyllis, "The Realities of Lesbianism" (K 966); Women for the Inclusion of Sexual Expression (W.I.S.E.) (J 330).

Cross reference is: Sex and Sexology (I 13).

Female Hormones

See Hormones, Women and (G 453).

Female Impersonators

See Man as Woman (C 869), Transvestites (I 226).

Female Roles, Males in

See Man as Woman (C 869).

Feminine Beauty, Women as (G 451)	4	419
Feminine Beauty (BTWW:H-E1)	11 ess	417
Feminist Therapists and Counselors See Association for Women Psychologists (D 1105).		
Feminized Males See Man as Woman (C 869).		
Fertility Drugs See Hormones, Women and (G 453).		
Fidell, Linda, "Physiological and Psychological Sex Differences" (K 1562)	5A	136
Folk Medicine, Female (I 646)	2	558
Folklore, Female See Folk Medicine, Female (I 646).		
Food See Nutrition (I 1513).		
Freud, Anna See Freud, Sigmund (C 388).		
Freud, Sigmund (C 388)	. •	209

Frigid. Women as (G1213)	10 i	1109
Gay Liberation Front See Female-Female Sexuality (I 5), Gay Women Liberation (J 117), Lesbians and Women's Libera- tion (Q 463).	¹s	
Gay Women See Female-Female Sexuality (I 5), Gay Women Liberation (J 117), Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q 463).	İs	
Gay Women's Liberation (J 117)		007
Genitalia, Women as (G 509)	4	489
Opinions are presented asserting genocidal action by the American and other governments toward Blacks and Third World persons. Birth control methods are considered to be offered to minority populations as genocide. Rebuttals to these positions are also provided. See also: Abortion and Birth Control (BTWW: H-B1); Family Planning/Population Growth Control (BTWW:H-A2); Sterilization, Forced (BTWW:H-B3).	11	234

See Braless, Women as (G 1183).

Girdles

Goldner, Ginger See London, Nancy, and Goldner, Ginger, "Women and Sex" (K 1011). Gonhorrhea See Venereal Disease (I 445). Groups, Men in See Men in Groups--Lionel Tiger (C 1063). Gynecologists - Recommended See Professionals: Recommended Gynecologists, Lawyers, Psychologists (E 829). Gynecology See Health and Female Troubles (I 1880). Hair Sprays See Deodorants, Douches, and Sprays (I 1485). Handicapped, Women as See Disabled, Women as (G 521). Harlots See Prostitutes, Women as (G 26). 976 Specifically female health problems and treatments are presented. See also: Hysterectomy (I 627); Section Seven, II. A. 3, "Health and Female Troubles". Health Centers and Health Care (E 83) 010 This file covers the establishment of clinics by women to insure proper health care, including "women's days" at other clinics. See also: Health Centers and Health Care (BTWW:H-A4); Women's Health Collectives (E 840); Self-Help Clinics (E 1773); U.C. Berkeley Women's Center (E 1701); Alternative Health (BTWW:H-B2); Section Seven, I. A. 1, "Health Centers and Health Care". 111 Health Centers and Health Care (BTWW:H-A4)..... Two subcategories are treated: Costs and Techniques. They treat health centers and care that are aimed at aiding Black and Third World populations, particularly services provided by Blacks, or other ethnic groups, for their own com-

See also: Alternative Health (BTWW:H-B2).

munity.

Health Collectives See Women's Health Collectives (E 840). Health Facilities and Personal Health Care See Health Centers and Health Care (E 83). Health Food See Nutrition (I 1513). Health Insurance See Insurance, Health (I 1784). 656 Health Protest (F 328) Health protests against descrimination in health care against women, children and minority groups are covered. See also: Abortion Protest (F 350); American Medical Association Protest, 1970 (F 1118); Lysistrata Day (F 1143); Pill Protest (F 358); Psychiatric Protest (F 1152); Section Seven, I.A. 3. "Health Protest". 078 44 Hemingway, Demystification of (C 314)..... This file includes criticisms of the hardguy, he-man, masculinity mystique in Hemingway's writings. Cross reference is Machismo (C 1952). 106 # 3 Henley, Nancy M. (H 1703)..... Ms. Henley is a feminist psychologist at Harvard University, and the author of a number of articles and of statements to the American Psychiatric Association. See also: "The Politics of Touch" (K 1704), "Shaking the Lead Out: Action Proposals to Psychologists" (K 1705). Cross reference is: Professionals: Recommended Gynecologists, Lawyers, Psychologists (E 829). Henley, Nancy M., "The Politics of Touch" (K 1704)... 4A 229 In this paper Ms. Henley discusses taboos about touching as a status reminder for women. Touching is a sign of power. The superior status person touches the inferior status person, and never the other way around. The paper was presented at the 1970 meeting of the A.P.A. A longer version of the paper, "Power, Sex, and Nonverbal Communication" is also included, as well as a

bibliography and short biographical sketch of

Ms. Henley.

Henley, Nancy, "Shaking the Lead Out: Action Proposals for Psychology" (K 1705).... 700 In this paper, presented at the 1971 meeting of the Eastern Psychological Association, Ms. Henley proposes action dealing with the status of women. She has a list of demands to the A.P.A. (American Psychiatric Association) including examining sex bias in psychological testing. Cross references are: American Psychiatric Association, Women's Caucus (D 1117); Psychiatric Protest (F 1152); Psychology, Women and (I 213). Hermaphrodites, Women as (G 1221)..... 1107 This file contains materials about individuals who have both male and female physical characteristics. Cross reference is: Sex and Sexology (I 13). Hippocrates, Doctor See Doctor Hippocrates (C 1047). Hitchhikers, Women as (G 1224)..... 4 657 The joys and dangers of hitchhiking for women are presented here. Cross reference is: Self-Defense (I 217). Home Remedies See Folk Medicine, Female (I 646). Home-Ownership See Homeless, Women as (G 1515). Homeless, Women as (G 1515)..... 699 This file considers the issue of the father's or husband's home versus the woman's home; the idea that a man's home is his castle; women who have no homeland. Homes, Women Without See Homeless, Women as (G 1515). Homosexuality See also: Female-Female Sexuality (I 5), Gay Women's Liberation (J 117), Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q 463). Hookers See Prostitutes, Women as (G 26).

Hormones, Women and (G 453)*	4	702
Hormones (BTWW:H-F2) These are articles selected from the Women and Hormones file (G 453) that relate to Black women.	11	563
Hospital Workers, Women as (G 170)*		110
Hospital Workers (BTWW:H-A3) [†]	, 11	080
See Man as Woman (C 869).		
Hunter, Eleanor, "Double Indemnity—The Negro Lesbian in the Straight White World" (BTWW:H-G1) This position paper was written December 9 1969. It was selected from Black Women's Positive Papers. Section K of the Topical Files of the Women's History Library (K 897).	* T.T.	587
Hygiene, Feminine See Deodorants, Douches, and Sprays (I 148 Dirty, Women as (G 305).	5);	

Hysterectomy (I 627)	5	1081
I.U.D. See Intrauterine Device (I.U.D.) (I 1859).		
"I Have Orgasms in My Clitoris" (K 939)	10	1267
Imperialism, Male (C 1056) [†]	4	1318
Impotence (C 456) ⁺	10	1128
Incest (I 877)	10	1165
Independent, Women as See Strong, Women as (G 1902).		
Insomnia See Sleep, Dreams, and Insomnia (I 1548).		
Insecure, Women as (G 1229)	4	551

797 Insurance, Health (I 1784) t........ Descrimination in health insurance policies is presented. See also: Section Seven, I. A. 5, "Health Insurance". 951 Intrauterine Device (I.U.D.) (I 1859)*..... This file includes the use of the I.U.D. as a contraceptive, medical information on I.U.D.'s, and arguments for and against their use. See also: The Birth Control Handbook (K 914); Section Seven, IV. C. "Intrauterine Device (I.U.D.)". Cross reference is: Birth Control (I 57). Irmational, Women as See Emotional, Women as (G 1198). Isolated, Women as See Lonely, Women as (G 1546). Jorgenson, Christine See Transsexuality (I 1352). 1174 10 Koedt, Anne (H 1314)..... Materials are about this feminist writer on sexuality. See also Koedt, Anne, "The Myth of the Vaginal Orgasm" (K 953). Cross reference is: Sex and Sexology (I 13). 1272 Koedt, Anne, "The Myth of the Vaginal Orgasm" (K 953). 10 This paper on female sexuality presents the thesis that orgasms in women occur in the clitoris not the vagina. The author discusses the origins of the belief in vaginal orgasms and its effect on women's sex roles: "Men have orgasms essentially by friction with the vagina, not the clitoris...Women have thus been defined sexually in terms of what pleases men; our own biology has not been properly analyzed. Instead, we are fed the myth of the liberated woman and her vaginal orgasm, an orgasm which in fact does not exist. Printed by the New England Free Press, Boston. Cross references are: Koedt, Anne (H 1314), Orgasm (I 207), Sex and Sexology (I 13).

Krause, Charlotte, M.S.W., "Women in Therapy and Social Workers as Therapists Introducing a New 716 3 Concept: The Femininity Complex" (K 1719)..... Education and new methods of birth control have opened new choices to women; but many are unable to make these choices freely, feeling that they are abnormal if they do not marry and bear children, and bind their lives to serving a husband and family. It is this fear of abnormality plus the internal prohibition against self-assertion which Krause labels the "femininity complex". This complex is strongly felt among female social workers, who, Krause maintains, would make good psychotherapists if given the chance. However, most women go to male therapists for the same reasons they look to men to fulfill their lives. For many women, a female therapist would be of great help. Cross references are: Childless, Women as (G 161); Marital Happiness and the Family (I 175); Motherhood and Women's Liberation (Q 375): Psychology, Women and (I 213). Labor and Delivery See Childbirth and Natural Childbirth (I 512), Midwifery (G 1700). Laing, Ronald D. (C 389)..... 3 325 This British psychiatrist has written extensively about mental illness. The file contains articles written by Laing and about him. Cross reference is: Psychology. Women and (1213).Law Suits - Health See Suits. Health (F 1810). Leavit, Ruth, "The Older Woman: Her Status and Role" (K 1869)..... 185 5A Legal Battles - Health See Suits, Health (F 1810). Lepers, Women as (G 1238)..... 738 Stereotypes of women as unclean and contaminated with a contagious disease are shown. See also: Dirty, Women as (G 305).

Lesbian Feminists See Gay Women's Liberation (J 117), Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q 463), Female-Female Sexuality (I 5). Lesbianism See Female-Female Sexuality (I 5), Gay Women's Liberation (J 117), Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q 463). Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q 463)..... 232 10 The role of lesbians in the women's movement is shown, and conflicts are expressed which many lesbians feel with their straight sisters. See also: Women for the Inclusion of Sexual Expression (W.I.S.E.) (J 330). Cross references are: Female-Female Sexuality. (I 5), Gay Women's Liberation (J 117), Sex and Sexology (I 13). Letter to Gandhi See Erikson, Erik (C 1041). Life Sciences See Biology, Women in/and (I 186). Litigations - Health See Suits, Health (F 1810). Lobotomy See Psychosurgery and Women (I 1495). London, Nancy, and Goldner, Ginger, "Women and Sex" 1295# 10 (K 1011).... "Loneliness of the Long-Distance Mother, The" See Bart, Pauline, "The Loneliness of the Long-Distance Mother" (K 950). 555 Lonely, Women as (G 1546)...... This file considers women who are lonely because no one cares about them, whether they are single, married, divorced, or widowed. Cross references are: Emotional, Women as (G 1198); Widows, Women as (G 517).

1280 # Lydon, Susan, "Understanding Orgasm" (K 996)..... 10 This article deals with women's sexuality as it has been defined by men - female sexuality so defined has been downgraded, perverted, abused, and repressed to convince women of their sexual inferiority to men. Freud's role in formulating this myth of female sexuality (e.g. penis envy, vaginal versus clitoral orgasm) is discussed as is the role of Masters and Johnson in exploding the myth. The Freudian myths are seen as another way of keeping women subservient to men. This article contends that in spite of the so-called Sexual Revolution woman are still not sexually liberated, and won't be until they can define and enjoy their own forms of sexuality. Cross references are: Freud, Sigmund (C 388); Orgasm (I 207); Sex and Sexology (I 13). Lyon, Phyllis See Martin, Del, and Lyon, Phyllis, "The Realities of Lesbianism" (K 966). 971 Lysistrata Day (F 1143)..... This was an abortion law protest which included the suggested tactic of "withholding favors". Cross references are: Abortion Protest (F 350), Health Protest (F 328). McGill University, Students! Society, The Birth Control Handbook. See Birth Control Handbook, The (K 914). 4A 226 Mace, Women and (I 1242)..... Women are portrayed using mace for selfdefense. Cross reference is: Self-Defense (I 217). 060 Machismo (C 1052)..... 4A This file focuses on the male ego-centric attitude and its effect on men's and women's behavior, especially violence. See also: Dominance Gestures (C 194); Violence, Male (C 1058); Hemingway, Demystification of (C 314).

fou	Patricia (H 1506)	8	895
Male Bac	klash See Backlash, Male (C 390).		
Male Con	traceptives See Contraceptives, Male (C 1054).		
Bla fin bec	initions of Women and White Definitions of ck Womanhood (BTWW:H-E2)	11	451
Male Imp	erialism See Imperialism, Male (C 1056).		
Male Vic	See Violence, Male (C 1058).		
or fem	Moman (C 869)	L¢.	1136
Marital les F6 Str lin Kra Wos	Happiness and the Family (I 175)	3	361
Marriag oc wo	This file includes marriage and love as they cur to American minority women and to African men, viewing the subjects as they relate to erything from psychology to pregnancy.	11	579

Martin, Del, and Lyon, Phyllis, "The Realities of Lesbianism" (K 966) This paper explores the negative social conditioning of women, the roles and identity of lesbians, and descrimination against homosexuals (loss of jobs and friends, imprisonment, etc.). This article was reprinted from Motive, March-April, 1969, and distributed by D.C. Women' Liberation. Cross references are: Female-Female Sexuality (I 5), Gay Women's Liberation (J 177), Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q 463), Sex and Sexology (I 13).	S	1285#
Instances of masochism are presented, and the psychological aspects of masochism are explored. Cross references are: Psychology, Women and (I 213); Sex and Sexology (I 13).	10	333
Masseuses See Prostitutes, Women as (G 26).		
Masturbation (I 1340)	10 s	382
Medicine, Women in/and (I 470) ⁺	1	815
Men in Groups Lionel Tiger (C 1063)	4 <u>A</u>	001
Menarchy See Puberty (I 1350).		

Menopause (I 1341).*	5	950
Menstruation See Puberty (I 1350).		
Mental Patients, Women as (G 455)*	2	1253
See also: Synanon, Women in (D 1879); Section Seven, I. B. 3. "Women in Mental Hospitals, as Mental Patients".		
Cross references are: American Psychiatric Association, Women's Caucus (D 1117); Disabled, Women as (G 521).		
Midwifery (G 1700)t	5	800
512); Midwifery (BTWW:H-F3); Pregnancy (I 212). Midwifery (BTWW:H-F3)	11	569
Militarism, American See Imperialism, Male (C 1056).		
Mink, Patsy See Patsy Mink Protest, Dr. Edgar Berman, and the Democratic Party (F 356).		

Monro	Ms. Monroe was a film actress and an excellent comedienne, and was known as a "sex goddess". She committed suicide in 1962. Cross references are Feminine Beauty (G 451); Suicides, Women as (G 176).	4	618
Mothe	er - Child Relations See Motherhood and Women's Liberation (Q 375).	•	
Mothe	articles are included on motherhood in America, Africa, and other Third World countries.	11	576
	New ways of looking at motherhood are discussed, as well as the freedom to choose or reject motherhood. See also: Childless, Women as (G 161); Bart, Pauline, "The Loneliness of the Long-Distance Mother" (K 950); Krause, Charlotte, "Women in Therapy and Social Workers as Therapists" (K 1719); Motherhood (BTWW:H-F5); Section Seven, III, B, 4, "Motherhood and Women's Liberation". Cross reference is: Marital Happiness and the Family (I 175).	5	682
	"Black Women's Role in the Revolution" (BTWW:H-G2) This position paper, written in 1969, was selected from the Black Women's Position Papers, Section K of the Topical Files of the Women's History Library (K 848).		
	Items from the Women as Victim file are included here with materials relating to physical injury and murder perpetrated on black and third world women.	L1	332
	of the Vaginal Orgasm, The" See Koedt, Anne, "The Myth of the Vaginal Orgasm" (K 953).		
	of Value-Free Psychotherapy, The" See Bart, Pauline, "The Myth of the Value- Free Psychotherapy" (K 811).		

Nation, Carrie (B 1026)	3	785
Cross references are: Alcohol, Women and (I 187); Women's Christian Temperance Union (B 1029).		
National Abortion Conference, July, 1971 (F 1583) A national women's conference was called to launch a nationwide campaign to repeal all abortion laws. See also: Abortion (I 12), Abortion Protest (F 350), Women's National Abortion Action Coalition (W.O.N.A.A.C.) (J 342). Cross reference is: Birth Control (I 57).	8	098
National Organization of Negro Women (BTWW:H-D8) This organization was founded to find food supplies for poor Black children in the South.	11	374
Natural Childbirth See Childbirth and Natural Childbirth (I 512) Midwifery (G 1700).	\$	
Neoplasms See Cancer, Women and (I 192).		
Nutrition (I 1513)*		190
Nutrition (BTWW:H-A5) †	. 11	123
Nymphomaniacs, Women as (G 1297)	10	395

O.W.L. See Older Women's Liberation (J 378). Obstetrics See Childbirth and Natural Childbirth (I 512), Midwifery (G 1700), Pregnancy (I 212). Odor See Deodorants, Douches, and Sprays (I 1485). Old Ladies, Shameless See Shameless Old Ladies (G 1270). Old, Women as (G 1257)..... 1088 The articles in this file discuss the neglect and exploitation suffered by aged women. See also: Death, Women and (I 1333); Shameless Old Ladies (G 1270); Section Seven, III, C. 2, "Women as Old". 426 "Older Woman, The" (G 19)...... The stereotype of the attraction of younger men for older women, and vice versa, are explored. Cross reference is: Sex and Sexology (I 13). "Older Woman, The: Her Status and Role" See Leavit, Ruth, "The Older Woman: Her Status and Role" (K 1869). Older Women (G 828) 5 991 This file shows the ways in which society's emphasis on youth affects the attitudes and actions of women over thirty. See also: Cleveland Radical Women's Group. Sweet Sixteen to Saggy Thirty-Six (K 986); Menopause (I 1341); Older Women's Liberation (J 378); Shameless Old Ladies (G 1270); Bart, Pauline, "The Loneliness of the Long-Distance Mother" (K 950). Older Women's Liberation (J 378)...... 007 5A This file includes information on all groups of older women involved in Women's Liberation. See also: Older Women (G 828).

Orgasm (I 207)	₹ † †4 †
Parts of the Body, Women as See Bodies and Bodily Parts, Women as (G 1838).	
Patsy Mink Protest, Dr. Edgar Berman, and the Democratic Party (F 356)	712
Penis See Phallus, Women and (I 442).	
Penis-Envy See Phallus, Women and (I 442).	
Phallus, Women and (I 442)4 Theories about penis envy and phallic symbols are presented, as well as material on cigarettes as phallic symbols. Cross reference is: Sex and Sexology (I 13).	1169
"Physiological and Psychological Sex Differences" See Fidell, Linda, "Physiological and Psychological Sex Differences" (K 1562).	
Pill, The (I 208). The great debate for and against the use of the pill is presented, including statistics and research. The material is divided into subcategories: D.E.S., Studies, Warnings and Side Effects, Politics and the Pill, Foreign Countries. See also: The Birth Control Handbook (K 914), Pill Protest (F 358); Von Hoffman, Nicholas (C 310); Section Seven, IV, B, "The Pill". Cross reference is:Birth Control (I 57).	798

Pill Protest (F 358) Protests against oral contraceptives, and against the manufacturers of the pill are included. See also: Pill, The (I 208). Cross references are: Birth Control (I 57), Health Protest (F 328).	6	824
Planned Parenthood (E 457) Materials about this counseling agency and its birth control clinics is collected here. See also: Sanger, Margaret (B 441); Section Seven, IV, G, "Planned Parenthood". Cross references are: Birth Control (I 57); Contrceptives, Male (C 1054).	8	971
Plastic Surgery, Women and (I 1262)	4 1.	204
Poisoning, Lead and Pollution (BTWW:H-D3)	11	304
"Politics of 'Free' Love, The - Forced Fornication" (K 962) This article reflects on "pseudo-sexual emancipation, and comments on an article in Cosmopolitan, "How to Love Like a Real Women", which sees women's liberation as being liberated to please men sexually. Women's Liberation, New York City, printed this article in June, 1969. Cross reference is: Sex and Sexology (I 13).	10	1270
"Politics of Touch, The" See Henley, Nancy, "The Politics of Touch" (K 1704).		

"Politics of Violence, The" See Price, Judith, "The Politics of Violence" (K 902).Population Control (I 211) 8a 009 All aspects of controling world populations are considered. See also: Birth Control (I 57); Family Planning, Population Growth Control (BTWW:H-A2); Genocide (BTWW:H-C1); Section Seven, IV, H, "Population Control". Population Explosion See Population Control (I 211). Pornography See Sex and Sexology (I 13). Pregnancy (I 212) 5 338 Information is provided on prenatal care, normal and complicated pregnancy. See also: Childbirth and Natural Childbirth (I 512); Hormones, Women and (G 453); Midwifery (G 1700); Sex Determination (I 1353); Test Tube Baby (I 1358); Section Seven, III, B. 1, "Pregnancy". Cross reference is: Biology, Women in/and (I 186).571 11 Pregnancy (BTWW:H-F4)..... Articles are about pregnant African and American minority women. Prenatal Care See Pregnancy (I 212). 259 4A Price, Judith, "The Politics of Violence" (K 902).... The author intends to "Share with other women some thoughts about the dynamics of physical and emotional violence perpetrated by men - not especially thieves or rapists, but lovers and husbands... Indeed to oppress effectively, their own protection must always be increasing. They may deny the most blatant oppression, but they will always affirm the 'rights' they have taken for themselves. They know the rage and frustration of their victims is so great that it is potential power. You must understand that first and last it is a struggle for power and that violence is the common denominator ... "

Ms. Price's article Was available from Southern Female Rights Union, New Orleans, La Cross reference is: Violence, Male (C 1058).	
Prison Treatment (RTWW:H-D2)	300
Professionals: Recommended Gynecologists, Lawyers, Psychologists (E 829)	042
Prohibition See Alcohol, Women and (I 187); Nation, Carrie (B 1026); Women's Christian Temperance Union (B 1029).	
Promiscuity See Nymphomaniacs, Women as (G 1297).	
Prostitutes, Women as (G 26)	506
Prostitution (BTWW:H-D7)	366
Prostitution See Prostitutes, Women as (G 26).	
Prostitution, Conference on, December, 1971 See Conference on Prostitution, December, 1971 (F 1739).	
Protest, Abortion See Abortion Protest (F 350).	

Protest. Health See Health Protest (F 328). Protest. Hormone See Patsy Mink Protest, Dr. Edgar Berman, and the Democratic Party (F 356). Protest, Patsy Mink See Patsy Mink Protest, Dr. Edgar Berman, and the Democratic Party (F 356). Protest. Pill See Pill Protest (F 358). Protest, Psychiatric See Psychiatric Protest (F 1152). 1065 Psychiatric Protest (F 1152)..... 2 These protests are opposed to incompetent and biased psychiatric treatment. See also: American Psychiatric Association, Women's Caucus (D 1117); Henley, Nancy, "Shaking The Lead Out: Action Proposals to Psychologists" (K 1705); Section Seven, I. B. 2, "Psychiatric Protest". Cross references are: Health Protest (F 328); Psychology. Women and (I 213). "Psychoanalysis: A Feminist Revision" See Torrey, Jane, "Psychoanalysis: A Feminist Revision" (K 345). Psychologists - Recommended See Professionals: Recommended Gynecologists. Lawyers, Psychologists (E 829). 651 2 Psychology, Women and (I 213)..... Psychological theories about women, women in therapy, and women as psychologists are all considered here. See also: all other files in Section One, B; Psychosurgery and Women (I 1495); Relevance of Psychology (BTWW:H-E3); Suicide, Women and (G 1604); Henley, Nancy, "Shaking the Lead Out:

Action Proposals to Psychologists (K 1705); Krause, Charlotte, "Women in Therapy and Social Workers as Therapists" (K 1719); Torrey, Jane, "Psychoanalysis: A Feminist Revision" (K 345); Masochism (I 224): Masturbation (I 1340); Reuben, David. M.D. (C 1069); Section Seven, I, B, 1,

"Psychology".

Psychosurgery and Women (I 1495)	4	741
Puberty (I 1350) The physical and emotional aspects of puberty are considered.	5	948
Pussy, Women as See Genitalia, Women as (G 509).		
Radical Lesbians See Gay Women's Liberation (J 117); Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q 463): Female-Female Sexuality (I 5).		
Ramey, Estelle (H 1904)	2	800
Rape (BTWW:H-D6)	11	345
"Realities of Lesbianism, The" See Martin, Del, and Lyon, Phyllis, "The Realities of Lesbianism" (K 966).		
Recommended Medical Professionals See Professionals: Recommended Gynecologists. Lawyers, Psychologists (E 829).	,	
Relevance of Psychology (BTWW:H-E3)	11	529

Reducing Diets See Dieting, Women and (G 163). 10 1207 Reich, Wilhelm (C 311)..... This psychologist theorizes on economics. the nuclear family, politics, and traditional morality. Cross references are: Psychology, Women and (I 213); Sex and Sexology (I 13). Restlessness See Stir Crazy, Women as (G 1604). 10 1255 Reuben, David, M.D. (C 1069)..... This psychiatrist wrote Everything You Always Wanted to Know About Sex But Were Afraid to Ask, and Any Woman Can. Cross references are: Psychology, Women and (I 213); Sex and Sexology (I 13). Rhythm See Birth Control (I 57). Sanger. Margaret (B 441)..... 1310 Margaret Sanger was a pioneer in the field of birth control during her lifetime (1879-1966). Cross references are: Birth Control (I 57), Planned Parenthood (E 457). Schoenfeld, Eugene, M.D. See Doctor Hippocrates (C 1047). 4A 119 Self-Defense (I 217)..... This file includes the use of methods of self-defense by women, teachers and students of self-defense. See also: Hitchhikers, Women as (G 1224); Mace. Women and (I 1242); Section Seven, II, B, 4, "Self-Defense". Cross references are: Strong, Women as (G 1902): Victims, Women as (G 181). 351 Self-Help Clinics (H 1773)..... Free health services (especially gynecological) are run by women. They teach classes on anatomy, breast examination, use of a speculum, and menstrual extractions. See also: Health Centers and Health Care (E 83); Women's Health Collectives (E 840); A.M.A. Protest, 1970 (F 1118); Section Seven, I. A. 2, "Self-Help Clinics."

Self-reliance See Strong, Women as (G 1902). Sex (BTWW:H-F1).... 11 541 Articles and opinions are from American and African writers. Sex and Sexology (I 13)..... 413 Women's sexuality is considered: laws regulating sexuality, sexual revolutionaries, extramarital affairs, pornography. See also: all other files in Section Five; Henley, Nancy, "The Politics of Touch" (K 1704); Lydon, Susan, "Understanding Orgasm" (K 996); Phallus (I 442); Sex (BTWW:H-F1); Von Hoffman, Nicholas (C 310); Section Seven, V, A. and Sexology". Sex Change Surgery See Transsexuality (I 1352). Sex Determination (I 1353)⁺..... 626 Cross references are: Biology, Women in/and (I 186); Prognancy (I 212). Sex Education (I 218)..... 877 Arguments are presented favoring and opposing more open, complete sex education. See also: Section Seven, V. B. "Sex Education". Cross reference is: Sex and Sexology (I 13). Sex Goddess See Monroe, Marilyn (B 1813). Sex Object See Feminine Beauty (G 451); Genitalia, Women as (G 509). Sexology See Sex and Sexology (I 13). Sexual Abstinence See Celibacy (I 1329). Sexual Maturity See Puberty (I 1350). "Sexual Mythology, The" See Taylor, Mary Katherine, "The Sexual Mythology" (K 1695).

Sexuality See Sex and Sexology (I 13).		
Shainess, Natalie (H 1492)	3	163
"Shaking the Lead Out: Action Proposals to Psychologis See Henley, Nancy, "Shaking the Lead Out: Action Proposals to Psychologists" (K 1705).	sts"	
Shameless Old Ladies (G 1270)	5A ;	023
Sickle Cell Anemia (BTWW:H-A1)	11	800
Slatterns, Women as See Dirty, Women as (G 305).		
Slovenly, Women as See Dirty, Women as (G 305).		
Sleep, Dreams, and Insomnia (I 1548)		533
Somnambulism See Sleep, Dreams, and Insomnia (I 1548).		
Sperm Banks See Test Tube Baby (I 1358).		
Spermicides . See Birth Control (I 57).		
Spock, Benjamin, M.D. (C 462)	2	587

Sterilization (I 222)	en,	902
Sterilization, Forced (BTWW:H-B3). This is part of Black and Third World Pro Threats and welfare cut-offs are used by doctor and administrators to force Black women to acc to sterilization after the birth of a child, of before pregnancies involving both older and veryoung women. See also: Abortion and Birth Control (BTW B1); Family Planning - Population Growth Control (BTWW:H-A2).	test. rs ede r ry W:H-	198
Stir Crazy, Women as (G 1406)	nt 4	761
Strong, Women as (G 1902)	am- re -	632
Students' Society of McGill University See The Birth Control Handbook (K 914).		
Suicides, Women as (G 176). Individual suicide attempts and successes are discussed, along with motivations behind socide. See also: Monroe, Marilyn, (B 1813); Section Seven, II, B, 1, "Suicide". Cross references are: Disabled, Women as (521); Emotional, Women as (G 1198); Psychology, Women and (I 213).	ui- ion (G	566

697 Suits. Health (F 1810)..... Legal suits about the pill, women in medical careers, on-the-job injuries, abortion, and other issues related to women and health are discussed. See also: Section Seven, I. A. 4. "Health Suits". Superiority, Male See Dominance Gestures, (C 194). 334 3 Synanon, Women and (D 1879)..... Women are working at Synanon, and women are in therapy there. Cross references are: Alcohol, Women and (I 187); Counseling Centers, Women's (E 1683); Drugs, Women and (I 167); Mental Patients, Women as (G 455). "Sweet Sixteen to Sagging Thirty-Six" See Cleveland Radical Women's Group, "Sweet Sixteen to Sagging Thirty-Six" (K 986). Syphlis See Venereal Disease (I 445). Taylor, Mary Katherine, "The Sexual Mythology" (K 1695) 10 1294 # Terminal Diseases See Death, Women and (I 1333). Test Tube Baby (I 1358). 5 582 Information is provided on sperm banks and artificial insemination, and on research about the possibility of fetus growth outside the womb. Cross references are: Biology, Women in/and (I 186); Prognancy (I 212). Thinness See Dieting, Women and (G 163). Tiger, Lionel See Men in Groups - Lionel Tiger (C 1063). Tits See Boobies, Women as (G 450). Topless Dancers See Boobies, Women as (G 450).

Torrey, Jane W., "Psychoanalysis: A Feminist Revision" (K 345). This author considers the patriarchal system as a means of achieving legitimate paternity. She traces Freud's emphasis on the penis as the result of his own infantile trauma at circumcision (a symbolic castration). This paper was written March 27, 1971. Cross reference is: Psychology, Women and (I 213).	3 710
Tramps	
See Prostitutes, Women as (G 26).	
Successful sex change operations and medical facts about these operations are presented, along with information on the emotional and legal problems faced by transsexuals. See also: Man as Woman (C 869). Cross references are: Sex and Sexology (I 13), Transvestite (I 226).	0 1052
Persons adopt the dress and sometimes the behavior of the opposite sex. See also: Man as Woman (C 869), Transsexuality (I 1352). Cross reference is: Sex and Sexology (I 13). Tubal Ligation See Sterilization (I 222).) 10 96
Unclean, Women as See Dirty, Women as (G 305); Lepers, Women as (G 1238).	
"Understanding Orgasm" See Lydon, Susan, "Understanding Orgasm" (K 996).	
University of California, Berkeley, Medical Center, Women in (E 1797)	105

Unstable, Women as See Emotional, Women as (G 1198). Uterus See Hysterectomy (I 627), Health and Female Troubles (I 1880). V.D. See Venereal Disease (I 445). Vagina. Woman as See Genitalia, Women as (G 509). Vasectomy See Contraceptives, Male (C 1054); Sterilization (I 222). Vegetarianism See Nutrition (I 1513). Venereal Disease (I 445)..... 1106 This file includes medical, emotional, and moral aspects of venereal disease. See also: Section Seven, II, A. 4, "Venereal Disease". Vibrators See Masturbation (I 1340). 764 Victims, Women as (G 181)..... This file depicts women as recipients of unjustified (usually criminal) behavior. Women are seen as powerless to protect themselves. See also: Self-Defense (I 217); Section Two. B. "Psychological and Physical Victimization of Women"; Section Six, D, "Victimization: Physical", and E, "Victimization: Psychological". Cross references are: Disabled, Women as (G 521); Violence, Male (C 1058). Violence, Male (C 1058)...... 101 Actual accounts of physical violence are included, with psychological understandings of this behavior. See also: Von Hoffman, Nicholas (C 310); Victims, Women as (G 181); Price, Judith, "The

Cross references are: Domniance Gestures (C

Politics of Violence" (K 902).

1194); Machismo (C 1052).

Virginity See Chastity (I 1330).		
Von Hoffman, Nicholas (C 310) This man is a syndicated columnist with the Times-Post News Services. He has written about some aspects of sexuality such as the pill, and lesbianism. Cross references are: Marital Happiness and the Family (I 175); The Pill (I 208); Sex and Sexology (I 13); Violence, Male (C 1058).	8 A	328
War (BTWW:H-D9) The direct and indirect effects of war on Black and Third World women are explored, with particular focus on the Viet Nam war.	11	406
W.C.T.U. See Women's Christian Temperance Union (B 1029).		
W.I.S.E. See Women for the Inclusion of Sexual Expression (J 330).	56¢	
W.O.N.A.A.C. See Women; s National Abortion Action Coalition (W.O.N.A.A.C.) (J 342).		
Wakefulness See Sleep, Dreams, and Insomnia (I 1548).		
Weight Loss See Dieting, Women and (G 163).		
Weisstein, Naomi (H 271)	3	170
Welfare (BTWW:H-D1) Material is about Black and Third World wo- men who depend on welfare	11	275

Whores

See Prostitutes, Women as (G 26).

Witchcraft, White
See Folk Medicine, Female (I 646).

Women and Madness
See Phyllis Chesler (H 1500).

Women and Psychology See Psychology, Women and (I 213).

"Women and Sex"

See London, Nancy, and Goldner, Ginger, "Women and Sex" (K 1011).

Women as Hospital Workers See Hospital Workers, Women as (G 170).

"Women in Therapy and Social Workers as Therapists"
See Krause, Charlotte, "Women in Therapy
and Social Workers as Therapists" (K 1719).

Women in/and Medicine
See Medicine, Women in/and (I 470).

Women Psychologists

See Association for Women Psychologists (D
1105).

Women's Christian Temperance Union (B 1029) This women's group was formed in the 19th century to curb the use of alcohol, because its use freed men to beat women. See also: Nation, Carrie (B 1026). Cross reference is: Alcohol, Women and (I 187).	3	790
Women's Health Collectives (E 840) [†]	1	607
Women's National Abortion Action Coalition (W.O.N.A.A.C. (J 342)	8	121

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF THE MICROFILM

SECTION ONE PHYSICAL AND MENTAL HEALTH OF WOMEN

A. PHYSICAL HEALTH: INSTITUTIONS, ISSUES AND PROBLEMS	Reel #	Image #
1. HEALTH FACILITIES AND PERSONAL HEALTH SERVICES	1	010
a. Health Centers and Health Care (E83)	1	010
b. Self-Help Clinics (E1773)	1	351
c. Health Collectives, Women's (E840)	1	607
a. Health Protest (F328)	1	656
		686
b. American Medical Association (A.M.A.) Protest, 1970 (F1118)		
c. Lawsuits, Health (F1810)		697
3. INSURANCE, HEALTH (I1784) +	Å.	797
4. HEALTH MANPOWER (HEALTH PROFESSIONALS AND WORKERS)		
a. Medicine, Women in/and (1470)	1	815
1) Ramey, Estelle (H1904)	2	800
b. Professionals: Recommended Gynocologists, Psychologists, lawyers, etc. (E829)	2	042
c. University of California, Berkeley, Medical Genter, Women in (E1797)		105
d. Hospital Workers, Women as (G170)	. 2	110
5. PHYSICAL HEALTH PROBLEMS		
a. Dietary Problems		
1) Nutrition (I1513)	• 2	190
2) Dieting, Women and (G163)		456
b. Sleep, Dreams and Insomnia (I1548)		533

	Reel #	Image #
8. MISCELLANEOUS MENTAL HEALTH TOPICS		
a. Synanon (D 1879)	3	334
b. Marital Happiness and the Family (I 175)	3	361
9. POSITION PAPERS		
a. Henley, Nancy, "Shaking the Lead Out: Action Proposals to Psychologists" (K 1705)	3	700
b. Torrey, Jane, "Psychoanalysis: A Feminist Revision" (K 345)	3	710
c. Krause, Charlotte, "Women in Therapy and Social Workers as Therapists" (K 1719)	3	716
d. Bart, Pauline B., "The Myth of Value-Free Psychotherapy" (K 811)	3	730

TABLE OF CONTENTS OF THE MICROFILM

SECTION TWO PHYSICAL AND MENTAL ILLNESSES OF WOMEN

A. PHYSICAL ILLNESSES AND DISABILITIES

1. DISEASES OF ADDICTION	Reel #	Image #
a. Alcohol (I187)	• 3	733
1) Nation, Carrie (B1026)	• 3	785
2) Women's Christian Temperance Union (W,C.T.U.) (B1029)	• 3	790
b. Drugs (1167)	• 3	794
2. GYNECOLOGIC DESEASES		
a. Health and Female Troubles (I1880):	• 3	976
b. Venereal Disease (1445)	• 3	1106
3. CANCER (1192)	• 4	800
4. DISABLED, WOMEN AS (G521)	. Ų	200
5. PLASTIC SURGERY (11261)	· 4	204
B. PSYCHOLOGICAL AND PHYSICAL VICTIMIZATION OF WOMEN		
1 . STEREOTYPED PERCEPTION OF THE FEMALE		
a. Sexually Oriented		
1) Bodily Parts, Women as (G1838)	. 4	214
2) Boobies, Women as (G450)	. 4	229
3) Braless, Women as (G1183)	, Ц	296
4) Childless, Women as (G161)	. L	343
5) Deodorants, Douches and Sprays (I1485)	, U	354
6) Dirty, Women as (G305)	. 4	413
7) Feminine Beauty (G451)	4	419
8) Genitalia, Women as (G509)	. 4	489

O. Violence Oriented		
1) Backlash, Male (C390)	4	1227
2) Dominance Gestures (C194)	4	1277
3) Imperialism, Male (C1056)	4	1318
4) Men In Groups Lionel Tiger (C1063)	4 A	001
5) Machismo (C1052)	4 A	060
a) Hemingway, Demystification of (C314)	4 A	078
6) Violence, Male (C1058)	4A	101
3. FEMALE DEFENSES AGAINST MALE BEHAVIOR PATTERNS		
a. Self-Defense (1217)	4A	119
1) Mace (11242)	4A	226
4. POSITION PAPERS		
a. Henley, Nancy, The Politics of Touch (K1704)	4A	229
b. Price, Judith, "The Politics of Violence" (K902)	4A	259
c. Cleveland Radical Women's Group, "Sweet Sixteen to Saggy Thirty-Six" (K986)	4A	262

	SECTION THREE BIOLOGY, WOMEN AND THE LIFE CYCLE	Reel #	Image #
Α.	BIOLOGY, WOMEN AND/IN (1186)	5	286
В.	PREGNANCY, CHILDBIRTH AND CHILDCARE		
	1. PREGNANCY (1212)*	5	338
	2. MATERNITY LEAVE (11582)	5	496
	3. TEST TUBE BABIES (11353) T	5	582
	4. SEX DETERMINATION (11\$53)†	5	626
	5. CHILDBIRTH AND NATURAL CHILDBIRTH (1512)	5	649
	6. MIDWIFERY (G1700) t	5	800
	7. BREASTFEEDING (I1325)	5	905
	8. MOTHERHOOD AND WOMEN'S LIBERATION (Q375)	5	862
C.	LIFE CYCLE OF THE FEMALE		
	1. PUBERTY, WOMEN AND (I1350)	5	948
	2. MENOPAUSE, WOMEN AND (I1341)	5	950
	3. OLDER WOMEN (G828) T	5	991
	a. Hysterectomy (1627)	5	1081
	4. OLD, WOMEN AS (G 1257)	5	1088
	a. Older Women's Liberation (J 378)	5A	007
	b. Shameless Old Lady (G 1270)	5 A	023
	5. DEATH, WOMEN AND (I 1333)	5A	070
	6. POSITION PAPERS		
	a. Bart, Pauline, "The Loneliness of the Long-Distance Mother" (K 950)	5 A	117
	b. Fidell, Linda, "Physiological and Psychological Sex Dif- ferences" (K 1562)	5 A	136
	c. Leavit, Ruth, "The Older Woman: Her Status and Role" (K 1869)	5A	185

SECTION FOUR BIRTH CONTROL/POPULATION CONTROL Reel # Image # 198 B. THE PILL (1208) 6 798 1. PILL PROTEST (F358) 6 824 951 D. CONTRACEPTIVES, MALE (C1054) 6 993 E. ABORTION (112)†...... 7 001 ABORTION CENTERS AND CLINICS (E1701)...... 8 001 NATIONAL ABORTION CONFERENCE, JULY 1971 (F1583)..... 8 098 WOMEN & S NATIONAL ABORTION ACTION COALITION (W.O.N.A.A.C.) 121 ABORTION PROTEST (F350)...... 8 194 a. Lysistrata Day (F1143)...... 8 891 5. MAGINNIS, PATRICIA (H1506)...... 8 895 F. STERILIZATION (1222)..... 8 902 G. PLANNED PARENTHOOD (E457)..... 8 971 1310 POPULATION CONTROL (1211) T..... 8A 009 MEN IN BIRTH CONTROL I. 1. VON HOFFMAN, NICHOLAS (C310)...... 8A 328 J. POSITION PAPERS 1. Students Society of McGill University, Birth Control Handbook (K914)..... 8A 366

SECTION FIVE SEX AND SEXUALITY	Reel #	Image #
A. SEX AND SEXOLOGY (I13)	9	413
B. SEX EDUCATION (1218)	9	877
C. VARIETIES OF SEXUAL BEHAVIOR		
1. CELIBACY (11329)	9	1085
2. CHASTITY (11330)	9	1094
3. FEMALE - FEMALE SEXUALITY (15):	9	1119
a. Gay Women's Liberation (J177)	10	007
b. Lesbians and Women's Liberation (Q463)	10	232
c. Women for the Inclusion of Sexual Expression (W.I.S.E.)	10	329
4. MASOCHISM (1224)	10	333
5. MASTURBATION (11340)	10	382
6. NYMPHOMANIACS, WOMEN AS (G1297) T	10	395
7. "THE OLDER WOMAN" (G19) ************************************	10	426
8. ORGASM (1207)	10	444
9. PROSTITUTES, WOMEN AS (G26)	10	506
a. Conference on Prostitution, December 1971 (F1739)	10	1039
10. TRANSEXUALITY (11352)	10	1052
11. TRANSVESTITES (I226)	10	1096
D. SEXUAL DISOIDERS		
1. HERMAPHRODITES, WOMEN AS (G1221)	10	1107
E. SOCIO-POLITICAL SEXUAL DISORDERS		
1. FRIGID, WOMEN AS (G1213)	10	1109
2. IMPOTENCE (C456)*	10	1128
3. INCEST (1877)	10	1165
F. WOMEN IN THE FIELD		
1. KOEDT, ANNE (H1314)	• 10	1174

G. MEN IN THE FIELD		
1. DR. HIPPOCRATES (C 1047)	10	1182
2. REICH, WILHEIM (C 311)	10	1207
3. REUBEN, DAVID, M.D. (C 1069)	10	1255
H. POSITION PAPERS		
1. "I Have Orgasms in My Clitoris" (K 939)	10	1267
2. "The Politics of Free Love: Forced Fornication" (K 962)	10	1270
3. Koedt, Anne, "The Myth of Vaginal Orgasm" (K 953)	10	1272
4. London, Nancy, and Goldner, Ginger, "Women and Sex" (K 1011)	10	1295#
5. Lydon, Susan, "Understanding Orgasm" (K 996)	10	1280#
6. Martin, Del, and Lyon, Phyllis, "The Realities of Lesbianism" (K 966)	10	1285#
7. Taylor, Mary Katherine, "The Sexual Mythology" (K 1695)	10	1294#

SECTION SIX BLACK AND THIRD WORLD WOMEN -- HEALTH

A.	BLACK AND THIRD WORLD STATISTICAL MATERIAL	Reel #	Image #
	1. SICKLE CELL ANEMIA (BTWW:H-A1):	. 11	008
	2. FAMILY PLANNING/POPULATION GROWTH (BTWW:H-A2):	. 11	025
	3. HOSPITAL WORKERS (BTWW:H-A3):	. 11	080
	4. HEALTH CENTERS AND HEALTH CARE (BTWW:H-A4)	• 11	111
	5. NUTRITION (BTWW:H-A5)	•• 11	123
В	BLACK AND THIRD WORLD PROTEST		
	1. ABORTION AND BIRTH CONTROL (BTWW:H-B1)T	• 11	142
	2. ALTERNATIVE HEALTH (BTWW:H-B2)	11	180
	3. STERILIZATION, FORCED (BTWW:H-B3)	* 11	198
C.	OPPOSING VIEWS		
	1. GENOCIDE (BTWW:H-C1)†		234
D.	VICTIMIZATION: PHYSICAL		
	1 . WELFARE(BTWW:H-D1)	11	275
	2. PRISON TREATMENT (BTWW:H-D2)	11	300
	3. POISONING: LEAD AND POLLUTION (BTWW:H-D3)	11	304
	4. DRUGS/ALCOHOL (BTWW:H-D4)	11	312
	5. MURDER AND INJURY (BTWW:H-D5)	11	332
	6. RAPE (BTWW:H=D6)	11	3 45
	7. PROSTITUTION (BTWW:H-D7)	· · <u>11</u>	366
	8. NATIONAL ORGANIZATION OF NEGRO WOMEN (BTWW:H-D8)	•• 11	374
	9 , WAR (BTWW:HD9)	11	406

		Reel #	Image #
E.	VICTIMIZATION: PSYCHOLOGICAL		
	1. FEMININE BEAUTY (BTWW:H-E1)	11	417
	2. MALE DEFINITIONS OF WOMEN (BTWW:H-E2)	11	451
	a. White Definitions of Black Womanhood (BTWW:H-E2)	11	451
	3. RELEVANCE OF PSYCHOLOGY (BTWW:H-E3)	11	529
F.	THIRD WORLD WOMEN AND THEIR BODIES		
	1. SEX (BTWW:H-F1)	11	541
	2. HORMONES (BTWW:H=F2)	11	563
	3. MIDWIFERY (BTWW:H-F3)	11	569
	4. PREGNANCY (BTWW:H-F4)	11	571
	5. MOTHERHOOD (BTWW:H-F5)	11	576
	6. MARRIAGE/LOVE (BTWW:H-F6)t	Question of the second	579
G.	POSITION PAPERS		
	1. Hunter, Eleanor, "Double IndemnityThe Negro Lesbian in the Straight White World" (BTWW:HG1)		587

SECTION SEVEN SPECIAL ISSUES OF MASS PERIODICALS*

I. PHYSICAL AND MENTAL HEALTH**	Reel #	Image #
A. PHYSICAL HEALTH: THE INSTITUTIONS, ISSUES, AND	PROBLEMS	
1. HEALTH CENTERS AND HEALTH CARE		
<u>Health News</u> 3/74, 5/74	. 12	11
<u>Her-self</u> 9/73	. 12	21
<u>It Ain't Me Babe</u> 7/23/70	. 12	23
<u>Liberation</u> 10/73	. 12	25
Medical Economics 9/25/72	. 12	30
Medical World News 10/6/72	. 12	39
<u>Modern Medicine</u> 9/18/72	. 12	57
Mountain Life and Work 6/74	. 12	59
Off Our Backs Summer 1971	. 12	62
PERCC 7/15/74	. 12	64
Private Practice 9/72	. 12	67
The Progressive 4/74	. 12	74
Synapse 2/14/74, 2/21/74, 3/15/74, 4/5/74,		
5/24/74	. 12	84
Radical Therapist AugSept. 1970	. 12	98
Work Force May-June 1974	. 12	100
2. SELF HELP CLINICS		
Feminist Women's Health Center Report (no date)	12	119
<u>Her-self</u> 9/73	. 12	129
<u>Loaded</u> 2/73	12	132

^{*} These are special issues pertaining to the subjects of each of the preceeding sections of the microfilm

^{**} Part I of Section Seven contains issues relevant to the subjects of Section One of the main part of the microfilm.

	Reel #	Image #
I.A.2. SELF-HELP CLINICS (Continued)		
Off Our Backs Summer 1971	12	135
Synapse 2/14/74	12	138
Work Force May-June 1974	12	140
3. HEALTH PROTEST		
Mountain Life and Work 6/74	12	146
Off Our Backs Summer 1971	12	157
Synapse 2/14/74, 3/15/74	12	159
Work Force May-June 1974	12	164
4.SUITS. HEALTH		
Her-Self 9/73	12	170
Medical Economics 9/25/72	12	172
Medical World News 9/22/72	12	181
5. INSURANCE, HEALTH		
Family Planning/Population Reporter 2/74, 4/74.	. 12	185
Health News 3/74	. 12	197
<u>Her-self</u> 9/73	. 12	199
Medical Economics 9/25/72, 11/6/72	. 12	201
Planned Parenthood Memo 5/24/74	. 12	213
The Progressive 4/74	. 12	216
Ramparts 7/74	. 12	221
6. MEDICINE, WOMEN AND		
<u>Common Sense</u> 3/27/72	. 12	229
Health News 3/74	. 12	232

	Reel #	Image
I.A.6. MEDICINE, WOMEN AND (Continued)		
Here and Now 7/8/70	. 12	234
Human Factor Fall 1970	. 12	236
<u>Loaded</u> 2/73	12	257
Medical Economics 11/6/72	12	260
Modern Medicine 9/18/72	12	262
Off Our Backs Summer 1971	12	264
People 1/74, 4/74	12	266
Synapse 2/14/74, 2/21/74	12	273
Woman Physician 3/71	12	282
Women's Voices NovDec. 1972	. 12	286
7. PROFESSIONALS: RECOMMENDED		
<u>Health News</u> 3/74	. 12	289
Medical Economics 11/6/72	. 12	291
Medical Opinion 9/72	. 12	304
Medical World News 9/22/72, 10/27/72	. 12	314
<u>Modern Medicine</u> 9/18/72	. 12	320
Private Practice 9/72	. 12	322
Synapse 5/24/74	. 12	333
Women's Voices NovDec. 1972	. 12	335
8. HOSPITAL WORKERS, WOMEN AS		
Columbus Free Press 5/31-6/15/71	. 12	339
Health News 3/24 4/24 5/24	12	3/11

	Reel #	Image #
I.A.8. HOSPITAL WORKERS, WOMEN AS (Continued)		
Medical Economics 8/25/72	12	347
PERCC 2/28/74, 7/15/74	12	351
Synapse 2/28/74, 5/24/74	12	355
Work Force 5/6/74	12	361
Women's Voices NovDec. 1972	12	364
9.NUTRITION		
Columbus Free Press 5/31-6/15/71	12	3 68
Common Sense 3/27/72	12	370
Health News 3/74	. 12	37 2
Liberation 1/73	. 12	387
Medical Opinion 9/72	. 12	389
Medical World News 9/8/72, 10/27/72	. 12	391
Modern Medicine 10/2/72	. 12	395
Nutrition Today July-August 1972	. 12	403
Off Our Backs Summer 1971	. 12	418
<u>People</u> 1/74	. 12	422
Portland Scribe 8/29-9/3/72	. 12	425
Synapse 2/14/74, 4/5/74, 5/10/74	. 12	427
10. DIETING		
American Family Physician 9/72	. 12	438
Modern Medicine 10/2/72	. 12	440
Nutrition Today 7/8/72	. 12	441

PERCC 2/28/74, 7/15/74.....

12

511

II. PHYSICAL AND MENTAL ILLNESSES OF WOMEN A. PHYSICAL ILLNESSES AND DISABILITIES 1. ALCOHOL Health News 4/74.... 516 12 Women's Voices Nov.-Dec. 1972..... 12 518 2. DRUGS American Family Physician 9/72..... 12 520 Common Sense 3/27/72..... 12 523 Consultant 10/72..... 12 526 Health News 3/74, 5/74.... 529 12 Madness Network News 2/74..... 532 12 Medical Economics 9/25/72, 11/6/72..... 534 12 Medical Opinion 9/72..... 541 12 Medical World News 9/8/72, 9/22/72, 10/6/72, 10/27/72.... 5/14 12 Modern Medicine 9/18/72, 10/2/72..... 558 12 564 Off Our Backs Summer 197 12 566 Patient Care 9/15/72..... 12 568 Rough Times 9/72..... 12 3. HEALTH AND FEMALE TROUBLES American Family Physician 9/72..... 12 572 Common Sense 3/27/72..... 12 574 Health News 3/74, 5/74..... 12 576 Here and Now July-Aug. 1970..... 580 12 Liberation 1/73..... 582 12

	Reel #	Image #
II.A.3. HEALTH AND FEMALE TROUBLES (Continued)		
Medical World News 9/8/72, 10/27/72	12	584
Modern Medicine 9/18/72	12	592
Mountain Life and Work 6/74	12	597
N.D.W.L.Newsletter Fall 1971	12	605
Patient Care 9/15/72	12	610
Woman Physician 3/71	12	630
Women's Voices NovDec. 1972	12	632
4. VENEREAL DISEASE		
Common Sense 3/27/72	12	635
Consultant 10/72	12	637
Health News 3/74, 4/74	12	640
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971	12	651
Off Our Backs Summer 1971	12	654
Rough Times 9/72	12	656
Women's Voices NovDec. 1972	12	6 5 8
5. CANCER		
Common Sense 3/27/72	12	771 #
Health News 3/74, 4/74, 5/74	12	773 #
It Ain't Me Babe 8/6/70-8/20/70	12	780 #
Modern Medicine 9/18/72, 10/2/72	12	782 #
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971	12	788 #
Women's Voices NovDec. 1972	12	791 #

R	eel #	Image #
II.B. PSYCHOLOGICAL AND PHYSICAL VICTIMIZATION OF WOM	en	
1. SUICIDE		
Health News 5/74	12	795 #
2. PSYCHOSURGERY		
Rough Times 9/72	12	799 #
3. WIDOWS		
Health News 5/74	12	803 #
Her-self 9/73	12	805 #
4. SELF-DEFENSE		
Her-self 9/73	12	807 #
Synergy 12/69	12	810 #
III. BIOLOGY, WOMEN, AND THE LIFE CYCLES		
A. BIOLOGY, WOMEN AND/IN (I 186)		
1. BIOLOGY AND WOMEN		
Medical World News 10/27/72	12	662 #
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971	12	667
B. PREGNANCY, CHILDBIRTH, AND CHILDCARE		
1. PREGNANCY		
Choice 5/1/74	12	673
Common Sense 3/27/72	12	675
<u>Consultant</u> 10/72	12	677
Family Planning/Population Reporter 4/74	12	680
Medical Economics 11/6/72	12	682
Off Our Backs Summer 1974	12	686

	Reel #	Image
III.B.2.CHILDBIRTH		
American Family Physician 9/72	12	689
Health News 3/74	12	694
<u>Liberation</u> 1/73	12	701
Something Else JanFeb. 1970	12	703
3. MIDWIFERY		
Feminist Women's Health Center Report (no date) 12	70 8
Medical World News 10/27/72	12	710
Mountain Life and Work 6/74	12	713A
PERCC 2/28/74, 7/15/74	12	714
<u>Synapse</u> 3/15/74	12	718
Work Force 5/6/74	12	720
4.MOTHERHOOD AND WOMEN'S LIBERATION		
<u>Columbus Free Press</u> 5/31-6/15/71	12	723
Rough Times 9/72	12	725
C. LIFE CYCLE OF THE FEMALE		
1. MENOPAUSE		
American Family Physician 9/72	12	729
<u>Medical World News</u> 10/27/72	12	733
<u>Modern Medicine</u> 10/2/72	12	735
Off Our Backs Summer 1971	12	743
Hamon Dhyrai ainn 3/21	12	2/12

	Reel #	Image #
III.C.2.OLD, WOMEN AS		
Consultant 10/72	12	747
<u>Health News</u> 3/74, 5/74	12	751
Medical Economics 11/6/72	12	758
Medical World News 9/8/72, 10/27/72	12	7 60
Mountain Life and Work 6/74	12	766
Woman Physician 3/71	12	768 #
IV. BIRTH CONTROL/POPULATION CONTROL		
A. BIRTH CONTROL		
Common Sense 3/27/72	. 12	818 #
Family Planning/Population Reporter 2/74, 4/74.	. 12	820
Here and Now July-Aug. 1970	. 12	839
Loaded 2/73	. 12	842
Mountain Life and Work 6/74	. 12	844
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971		847
PERCC 2/28/74, 7/15/74		860
Portland Scribe AugSept. 1972		867
Socialist Woman May-June 1969		869
B. THE PILL		
Ann Arbor Argus 2/9-2/23/70	. 12	873
Medical Economics 9/25/72, 11/6/72		878
Medical World News 9/22/72		883
Modern Medicine 9/18/72, 10/2/72		886

	Reel #	Image #
IV.B. THE PILL (Continued)		
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971	. 12	890
Socialist Woman May-June 1969	. 12	893
Woman Physician 3/71	. 12	896
C. THE I.U.D. (INTRAUTERINE DEVICE)		
Rough Times 9/72	. 12	900
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971	. 12	904
Portland Scribe AugSept.1972	. 12	907
E. ABORTION 1. ABORTION, GENERAL		
Ann Arbor Argus 2/9-2/23/70	. 12	910
Choice 5/1/74	. 12	912
Common Sense 3/27/72	. 12	921
Family Planning Perspectives (no date)	. 12	927
Family Planning/Population Reporter 2/74, 4/74	. 12	931
Feminist Women's Health Center Report (no date)	12	940
The Free You 4/69	12	944
Here and Now July-August 1970	12	946
<u>Her-self</u> 9/73	12	948
International Socialist Review July-August 1971	. 12	950
<u>It Ain't Me Babe</u> 8/6-8/20/70	12	952
Kalamazoo Patriot 3/9/?	12	954
Liberation 1/73	12	956
Manhattan Tribune 5/2/70	12	959
Medical World News 9/8/72	12	962

Reel	L	Image #
IV.E.1. ABORTION, GENERAL (Continued)		
Modern Medicine 9/18/72	12	965
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971	12	967
	12	972
**************************************	12	975
PERCC 2/28/74. 7/15/74	12	978
Planned Parenthood Memo 5/24/74	12	987
The Progressive 4/74	12	989
Something Else JanFeb. 1970	12	991
Synergy 12/69	12	994
Women's Voices NovDec 1972	12	999
2. ABORTION PROTEST		
Her-self 9/73	12	1003
It Ain't Me Babe 7/2-7/23/70	12	1005
Kalamazoo Patriot 3/9/?	12	1007
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971	12	1009
This Paper Belongs to the People 4/29/70	12	1012
F. STERILIZATION		
Family Planning/Population Reporter 2/74, 4/74.	12	1015
Medical Economics 11/6/72	12	1021
Modern Medicine 9/18/72, 10/2/72	12	1026
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971	12	1031
PERCC 7/15/74	12	1034
People 1/74	12	1036
Planned Parenthood Memo 5/24/74	12	1038

	Reel #	Image #
IV.F. STERILIZATION (Continued)		
Portland Scribe AugSept. 1972	. 12	1040
Rough Times 9/72	. 12	1042
G. PLANNED PARENTHOOD		
Her-self 9/73	. 12	1045
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971	. 12	1047
People 1/74	. 12	1050
H. POPULATION CONTROL		
Common Sense 3/27/72	. 12	1054
Family Planning Perspectives (no date)	. 12	1056
N.D.W.L. Newsletter Fall 1971	. 12	1075
Off Our Backs Summer 1971	. 12	1077
PERCC 7/15/74	. 12	1079
ZPG Reporter 5/71	. 12	1083
V. SEX AND SEXUALITY		
A. SEX AND SEXOLOGY		
Common Sense 3/27/72	. 12A	001
The Free You 4/69		004
Harper's Bazaar 3/71		009
Here and Now July-August 1970		053
Kalamazoo Patriot 3/9/?		055
<u>Loaded</u> 2/73		057

	Reel #	Image #
V.A. SEX AND SEXOLOGY (Continued)		
Portland Scribe AugSept. 1972	12A	062
Psychology Today 7/69	12A	064
Rough Times 9/72	12A	076
Synapse 4/5/74	12A	077
B. SEX EDUCATION		
<u>People</u> 4/74	12A	078
Psychology Today 7/69	12A	080
C. VARIETIES OF SEXUAL BEHAVIOR		
1. GAY WOMEN'S LIBERATION		
Columbus Free Press May-June 1971	, 12A	084
Common Sense 3/27/72	. 12A	086
Human Factor Fall 1970	. 12A	088
It Ain't Me Babe 8/6-8/20/70	. 12A	098
Liberation 1/73		100
Motive 1972 issue		103
Portland Scribe AugSept. 1972		138
Radical Therapist 8-9/70		140
Work Force 5-6/74		142
A STATE OF THE PARTY OF THE PAR		

SECTION SEVEN SPECIAL ISSUES OF MASS PERIODICALS	Reel #	Image #
VI. BLACK AND THIRD WORLD WOMEN - HEALTH		
A. BLACK AND THIRD WORLD STATISTICAL MATERIAL	Reel #	Image #
1. SICKLE CELL ANEMIA		
Health News 5/74	. 11	612
Synapse 2/21/74	. 11	614
2. FAMILY PLANNING		
People 1/74, 4/74	11	617
3. HEALTH CENTERS AND HEALTH CARE		
Modern Medicine 10/2/72	11	655
People 1/74	11	659
Synapse 5/3/74, 5/24/74	11	662
4. NUTRITION		
People 4/74	11	667
B. BLACK AND THIRD WORLD PROTEST		
1. ABORTION AND BIRTH CONTROL		
People 1/74, 4/74	11	670
2. STERILIZATION, FORCED		
<u>Her-self</u> 9/73	11	684
Mountain Life and Work 6/74	11	6 87
C. OPPOSING VIEWS		
1. GENOCIDE		
It Ain't Me Babe 7/2-7/23/70	11	690
Rough Times 9/72	11	692

	Reel #	Image #
F. THIRD WORLD WOMEN AND THEIR BODIES		
1. SEX		
Kalamazoo Patriot 3/9/?	11	695
<u>Liberation</u> 10/73	11	697
2. HORMONES		
Page 1/74	11	703

ADDENDA

	Reel #	Image #
Section One: Physical and Mental Health of Women		
A. Physical Health: Institutions, Issues and Problems	. 13	009
B. Mental Health: The Field, The Theories	. 13	465
Section Two:Physical and Mental Illnesses of Women		
A. Physical Illnesses and Disabilities	. 13	509
B. Psychological and Physical Victimization of Women	. 13	595
Section Three: Biology, Women and the Life Cycle	. 13	646
Section Four: Birth Control/Population Control	. 13	769
Section Five: Sex and Sexuality	. 13	930
Section Six: Black and Third World WomenHealth	. 11A	001